FROM:
"Dialog" Law Firm

TO:

"Azovproduct" Corp.

DATE:
December 14, 2005; No. 26

Dear Mr. Sevostianov,

Herewith we would like to keep you informed that the activities listed below have been performed in order to fulfill the task produced by the "Azovproduct" Corporation, in relation to completion of the start-up process of the railway tracks, spotlighting and station building located in the North-West Industrial Area of Azov:

· we arranged and performed the activities aimed at registration of the mentioned realty objects at the cadastre;

· we ordered and obtained the executive survey of the land where the "Azovproduct" objects are located;

· we arranged and performed the activities related to technical inventory and certification of the mentioned realty objects.

Hence, at this moment, we are ready to provide the Azov Municipal Administration with the full set of the documents required for the Mayor of the town to issue a decree approving the operation acceptance report of the newly erected transport structures, and to proceed to the federal registration of the "Azovproduct" ownership right for those structures.

Besides, upon the analysis of the documents and verbal information obtained from your company, we consider it necessary to keep you advised of the following.

On 04.08.2005, the "ATEK" Co., Ltd. registered their ownership right for the incompletely erected structure located in the North-West Industrial Area of Azov – a railway track with the length of 735.5 m – at the Headquarters of the Rostov Regional Federal Registration Service. The copy of the technical certificate of that structure that we managed to obtain allows a conclusion that "ATEK" has successfully registered their ownership right, including that for the approaching railway track No. 11 with the full length of 301.37 m – the one that "Azovproduct" is now setting into operation as an structure erected at your own expenses (hereinafter referred to as the 'structure at issue').

The will result in the impossibility (or at least, in the illegitimacy) of the "Azovproduct" ownership right registration for the railway track No. 11, as that ownership right has already been registered (even considering that the structure was not completed) for another company, the "ATEK" Co., Ltd.

Therefore, "Azovproduct" will only have the opportunity to get the structure federally registered after a claim for nullifying the already registered ownership right of the "ATEK" Co., Ltd. is allowed.

To settle of the issue of the "Azovproduct" ownership right for the railway track No. 11 is extremely important, as the independent railway services for the "Azovproduct" Terminal will be impossible otherwise (see the Reference Letter by Mr. N. Kashin, dd. 14.12.05).

Neither "Azovproduct" nor we have any documents that served the ground for registration of the ownership right for the structure for the "ATEK" Co., Ltd. The only thing we know is that it was invested as a contribution to the nominal capital of the company by one of its founders (by the "Azov Shipyard" Corporation, presumably) on 07.05.2003. But we do not know either if the ownership right for the structure has been federally registered for "Azov Shipyard", and, if yes, what documents served the ground for that. Earlier, the predecessor of the "Azov Shipyard" Corporation – the "Azov Shipyard" State Enterprise – really performed the construction of the approaching railway track along Konechnaya Street in Azov; that construction was being executed by the Bataysk Railway Department till 1986 when it was suspended. And the railway track No. 11 was partially erected on the existing embankment made by the "Azov Shipyard" State Enterprise.

Without the mentioned documents and the related information, it is impossible to give an exact answer to the question if the ownership right registration for the structure at issue for "ATEK" was legitimate or not. However, the only way to obtain those documents and the information is applying to court, or directly to "ATEK" and "Azov Shipyard".

Due to the information given above, we consider it necessary to perform the actions listed below in order to protect the interests of the "Azovproduct" Corporation.

1. A claim should be applied to the Rostov Regional Arbitrage, with the request to nullify the "ATEK" ownership right for the incomplete railway track No. 11, with the length of 735.5 m, located in the North-West Industrial Area of Azov. The ground for such a claim could be that fact the major part of the structure was erected at the "Azovproduct" expenses and by the subcontracting company, "Rostovgorstroy". As the respondent to this claim, the "ATEK" Co., Ltd. should be arraigned; "Rostovgorstroy" and the Rostov Regional Federal Registration Service should be called as third parties.

2. Reclamation through arbitrage for the information and the documents that served the ground for the "ATEK" ownership right registration for the mentioned structure, including the documents certifying way the ownership right for the structure at issue was acquired by "Azov Shipyard" and how it was delegated to "ATEK" then.

3. The documents and the information should be analyzed, and, basing on that analysis, the decision on any further legal controversy will be made, i. e. either the initial claims should be revised or a new claim should be applied (e. g.: claim against "ATEK" and "Azov Shipyard" regarding nullifying the delegation of the rights for the structure at issue). At this stage, "Azov Shipyard" will be called as the second respondent, as their interests will certainly be infringed on.

We have already prepared a draft of such a claim (attached herewith).

Any non-arbitrage procedure of the dispute settlement is only possible if "Azovproduct" initiates negotiations with "Azov Shipyard" immediately and reaches an agreement on the shared ownership for the structure at issue, fixing the shares proportional to the expenses born by each of the parties in relation to construction of the structure. This variant implies further joint operation of the structure at issue.

We are asking you to decide on the way you choose for settlement of this dispute.

Best regards,

I. Zinoviev,

Head of the "Dialog" Law Firm.

Attachment: Claim Statement Draft.

